
PARKS, NATURAL LANDS, URBAN FORESTRY, AND TRAILS ADVISORY BOARD of SALT LAKE CITY 

Formal Meeting  
Thursday, February 2, 2023 

5:00 p.m. – 7:15 p.m.   
Join Via Webex: https://saltlakecity.webex.com/saltlakecity/j.php?MTID=m920e2aee3ad5d7ce66f97deb859f2356 

Or Join at the Public Lands Administrative Building: 1965 W. 500 S. Salt Lake City, UT 84104 
Upstairs Parks Training Room 

Join by phone  
1-408-418-9388  

Access code: 2483 314 7293 

AGENDA 
1 – Convening the Meeting 5:00 PM 
Call to order 
Chair comments  5 mins 
2 – Approval of Minutes 5:05 PM 
Approve January 5, 2023 meeting minutes  5 mins 
3 – Public Comment Period 5:10 PM 
Verbal comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes; 15 minutes total. Written 
comments are welcome.  
4 – Director’s Report 5:25 PM 
Summary of current high-priority department items. 5 mins 
5 – Bylaws Subcommittee Discussion 5:30 PM 
Discuss proposed Bylaws updates – Ms. Finch 20 mins 
6 – Subcommittee Discussion 5:50 PM 
Board subcommittees present written details in correspondence with Bylaw 
Subcommittee requirements. 

• Trails Subcommittee
• Communication Subcommittee
• Bylaws Subcommittee
• 501c3 Subcommittee

30 mins 

8 – Staff Items 6:20 PM 
Discuss FY24 Budget Initiatives and Q&A session with staff. 25 mins 
OPMA, GRAMMA, Conflict-of-Interest, Board bios. 5 mins 
9 – Confirmation of Next Meeting, Board Comments & Future Agenda Items 6:50 PM 
Board comment and question period 

• File sharing
 20 mins 

Next meeting: March 2, 2023 5 mins 
Request for future agenda items 5 mins 
10 – Adjourn 7:15 PM 

https://saltlakecity.webex.com/saltlakecity/j.php?MTID=m920e2aee3ad5d7ce66f97deb859f2356


PARKS, NATURAL LANDS, URBAN FORESTRY AND TRAILS ADVISORY BOARD of SALT LAKE CITY 

Formal Meeting  
Thursday, January 5, 2023 

5:00 p.m. – 9:15 p.m.   

Join at Memory Grove Memorial House: 375 N Canyon Road, Salt Lake City, UT 84103 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

1 – Convening the Meeting 5:00 PM 
Call to order 

− Phil Carroll
− Clayton Scrivner
− Ginger Cannon
− Samantha Finch
− Aaron Wiley
− CJ Whittaker
− Brianna Binnebose
− Melanie Pehrson
− Jenny Hewson
− Meridith Benally

Chair comments 

Chair Binnebose thanked the Board for committing time for this retreat to take a 
deeper dive into some housekeeping and procedural items to help run 2023 run 
smoothly. As well as create the opportunity for subcommittees to set their action 
items for the year.  

 5 mins 

2 – Public Comment Period 5:05 PM 
Verbal comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes; 15 minutes total. Written 
comments are welcome. 

No public comments. 

 15 mins 

3 – Action Items 5:20 PM 
Approve December 1, 2022, meeting minutes. 

Ms. Ashlyn Larsen, Public Lands staff member, updated some comments made by Ms. 
Finch for the December 1, 2022, meeting minutes. Ms. Cannon made a motion to 
approve the previous meeting minutes. Ms. Finch seconded the motion. Board 
unanimously approved the meeting minutes.  

5 mins 

Chair and Vice Chair Election. 

Ms. Binnebose reminded everyone the vote would take place via paper ballot. The 
members nominated for chair are: 

− Brianna Binnebose

5 mins 



− Ginger Cannon
Board members nominated for vice-chair are: 

− Clayton Scrivner
− Melanie Pehrson
− Jenny Hewson

Mr. Allen reviewed the procedures in the event of a tie with nine Board members 
present. There must be a majority vote. With nine members present, there shouldn’t 
be an issue with the chair position, but for the vice-chair, they could run into a three-
way tie. There are two options if there is a tie: waiting for February to vote for a vice-
chair or doing another round of voting this evening. Ms. Cannon asked if Ms. Benally 
was going to be there. Mr. Luke Allen, Public Lands staff member, confirmed she would 
be there but late. Ms. Cannon asked if the Board could postpone voting until Ms. 
Benally arrived. Ms. Binnebose agreed. The rest of the Board agreed. 
4 – Staff Discussion and Agenda Items 5:30 PM 
Reimagine Nature Review Discussion 

Ms. Katherine Maus, Public Lands staff member, presented the Reimagine Nature 
Master Plan. Ms. Maus used a slide projector to share the presentation. All Board 
members had a physical copy of the Master Plan. Ms. Maus introduced herself as a city 
planner, explained her role, and thanked the Board for letting her present to them 
tonight. Ms. Maus did a high-level overview of the Master Plan and how it is a guide 
for Salt Lake City to follow for the next 20 years.  

Ms. Maus shared the inventory of all the types of land Public Lands cares for, such as 
natural lands, the foothill areas, urban forestry, golf courses, trails, parks, RAC, and the 
cemetery. Ms. Maus explained how Public Lands completed a Needs Assessment in 
2019 to help guide Public Lands to determine how to utilize these spaces to best 
prioritize and serve the community as Salt Lake City continues to grow. Ms. Maus 
explained how Public Lands managed the community engagement process, like 
participating with colleges, to administer in-person and digital outreach attempts. 
More community engagement details can be found on page 19 of the Master Plan.  

The plan is centered around three major goals: Sustain, Connect, Welcome, Protect, 
and Grow; 10 Transformative Projects; and a Set of Actionable Strategies. Themes of 
Equity, Livability, and Stewardship are values woven throughout the plan. Ms. Maus 
further defined “Sustain, Connect, Welcome, Protect and Grow” within the Master 
Plan. Ms. Maus explained how the 10 Transformative Projects, all achieve one or 
multiple areas of “Sustain, Connect, Welcome, Protect, and Grow”.  

Mr. Whittaker asked what “increase the provision of green space” means. Ms. Maus 
stated it’s three-fold: increasing acreage of green space downtown, increasing the 
effectiveness of current green spaces that are underutilized and being creative about 
how you look at green spaces. Ms. Maus shared the example of exploring how the 
‘right-away’ can increase green space downtown. Ms. Maus asked if there were any 
additional questions. Ms. Pehrson said she would save her questions for the end. Ms. 
Maus shared how Pioneer Park is one of the more under-utilized green spaces 
downtown, and they are currently ongoing some projects to improve the use of that 

30 mins 



space. Ms. Maus continued to share how Public Lands plans to be creative with their 
green spaces, like in golf.  

Ms. Maus asked Board members to turn to Chapter 8 of the Master Plan. She 
explained this section is the action strategies section and defines the steps that will be 
taken to achieve the three major goals of the Master Plan. Ms. Maus shared there will 
be some plans within the Master Plan that the Board will be involved in so she invited 
them to take a deeper dive into Chapter 8. Ms. Maus explained that from this Master 
Plan, Public Lands can begin creating a strategic 5-year plan to implement and 
prioritize all the goals and projects listed within the Master Plan. Ms. Maus opened the 
floor for the Board’s questions.  

Ms. Pehrson asked if the levels of services around the 94 acres needed in parks to 
sustain Salt Lake’s growth include or exclude properties that are already obtained or 
not developed, for example, Glendale. Ms. Kristin Riker, Public Lands Director, said 
Glendale, Allen Park, and Fleet Block take from the 94 acres; this totals 27 acres. The 
94 acres were determined with the Needs Assessment in 2017, and Public Lands didn’t 
have those things then. Ms. Maus also shared that some parcels in Public Land’s 
inventory are not developed and publicly accessible and are not counted towards the 
94 acres, such as the 200 West Urban Farm, which is funded.  

Ms. Pehrson asked if there will be a higher priority to updating the bilingual signage in 
high-use bilingual areas. Ms. Maus explained there are two outstanding projects 
regarding signage in high-use bilingual areas. One has funded 10 parks that have been 
selected based on size, amenities, and signage for navigation. Applications are in for an 
additional 10 parks updating signage. Those parks have not been determined, but are 
recommended based on the same criteria for the other 10 parks that were funded. Ms. 
Maus said more information would be shared come fall 2023. Ms. Riker shared that 
any new projects would have the bilingual language standard. Ms. Pehrson asked if the 
bilingual signage is officially now the standard practice. Ms. Maus said it’s nearly 
formalized.  

Ms. Pehrson asked if there would be a Public Lands employee who manages the 
“Coming Soon Near You” program and those partnerships. Ms. Maus shared there are 
specific action strategies that determine Public Lands policies and staff. Public Lands 
currently has a programming partnership management employee, Van Hoover, but 
there are other initiatives. Ms. Riker said the City had a recreation component at some 
point and got rid of it several years ago. As Public Lands brings on new parks, they have 
asked for new programming directors for specifics. Council denied that request, but 
Public Lands will continue to ask. It is in the Master Plan to have a full-time 
programming director for the Glendale facility. However, it is not in the budget or 
portfolio currently.  

Ms. Pehrson asked if a county person could oversee it. Ms. Riker explained the county 
does a lot of recreation programs, like sports. They run those facilities and leagues 
within the city for Public Lands. Mr. Allen shared that Park Rangers would be involved 
to some degree, as well. Mr. Scrivner asked if the Master Plan addresses the 
relationship between Public Lands and Salt Lake County or if REC was left off the table. 



Ms. Riker said REC was left off the table. Ms. Riker explained that the “Welcome” goal 
addresses activating parks, Public Lands has focused on building relationships and 
having stakeholder groups that activate their parks. For example, Liberty Park is very 
active, and the City permits people to use that space. Mr. Scrivner shared that the 
County is the same way. They rely on community-based programs and areas to run 
parks. Ms. Riker pitched to the Mayor that if you were an established group with Public 
Lands, you could apply for a $1,000 grant to activate a park. It encourages the 
community to help run the park. Ms. Pehrson shared that this is especially relevant for 
Glendale.  

Ms. Pehrson asked if there were any partnerships with developers for downtown. Ms. 
Riker said there is an impact fee when they do residential development. She explained 
they have tried to work with developers, but it hasn’t quite worked. This is something 
that is on economic development’s radar. Ms. Riker shared they have pitched a few of 
Public Land’s 2023 goals to the Mayor on ways for Public Lands to build up 
partnerships. Ms. Pehrson commented on how amazing the Master Plan document is 
and how proud she is of Salt Lake City. Ms. Cannon expressed she’s proud of the Board 
and the work they’ve done to help make this happen and their input. Ms. Riker shared 
reviewing the Master Plan is something that could be done once a year at the retreat.  

Ms. Cannon asked: how actionable items in Chapter 8 of the Master Plan will be 
accomplished, how that will be reported publicly and to the Board, how will progress 
be tracked, and whether will it be a part of the five-year strategic plan. Ms. Riker said 
after five years they will do an update as needed. Mr. Allen shared the plan is to 
update some of the metrics for the annual report for general things and items part of 
the Master Plan.  

Mr. Wiley asked if the City is the one doing the work for these projects and building 
the parks. Ms. Maus said the City will. She explained that there are many action 
strategies for implementing the Master Plan, and goals are directed at the Public Lands 
Department and Board. It is a document to hold everyone accountable for the actions 
we committed to taking. A lot of the projects deal with collaboration with other 
divisions, departments, and outside the organization, but it is all driven by the Public 
Lands department. Mr. Wiley asked for clarity on who is building the project, for 
example, on a slide. Ms. Maus explained that the planning team works with the 
community to determine the needs. Public Lands then submits an internal request to 
City Council, and they allocate funds out of the city budget. Public Lands has been 
exploring external opportunities for funding projects. Mr. Wiley asked for clarity on if 
Public Lands has a team that then builds the slide. Ms. Maus explained that it depends 
on the project and if it’s something that they can take on as a department can take on, 
the size and scale of the project. Ms. Riker also explained projects done by the Public 
Lands team are based on staff capacity. Ms. Riker further explained Public Lands’ role 
is to maintain the parks while planning should oversee what else does park need, how 
we can improve upon it, and planning oversight. Mr. Wiley asked how as a staff they 
determine where to start and what to focus on. Ms. Maus explained the five-year 
strategic plan and CIP process will be a good starting part for building that criterion.  
Mr. Whittaker asked what Public Lands is doing to help individuals from the West side 
get to these outdoor recreational activities access points and trailheads. He shared 



that UTA doesn’t seem to be very cooperative with outdoor recreational sports. He 
asked if it was possible to get UTA stops near these trailheads. Ms. Cannon explained 
unfortunately, Public Lands doesn’t have the funding, and it’s on the public to put 
pressure on UTA to add additional stops for public use. Ms. Cannon also shared the 
Board can put pressure on the Transportation Advisory Board to adhere to the public’s 
needs. Board continued to discuss UTA.  

Mr. Millar, Public Lands staff member, shared they are working with UTA when lane 
usage changes, like when a business location changes and UTA changes routes. Mr. 
Millar further explained Public Lands staff is working on keeping their websites up to 
date with information on how to access public spaces with public transportation, as 
well as, increasing awareness and usage around the public transit app. Mr. Millar 
shared that UTA is a fully public organization, not private. Ms. Maus said the Master 
Plan had heavy involvement from almost every division and department. Some of the 
strategies loosely hold divisions and departments accountable to do some work, too. 
Mr. Scrivner shared, based on Ms. Maus’ comment, that the City is better off ensuring 
that the Bike Plan gets implemented with this stuff, and you can feel safe getting your 
mountain bike to the trailhead rather than waiting for UTA to step up with mass 
transit. Ms. Riker shared that the City has been looking at Fleet Block and needing 
three acres on the corner for a park, but because of the Master Plan, they are bound 
to make it happen. Ms. Maus thanked everyone on the Board for their support.  

Ms. Binnebose asked if the Board would like to take a break for dinner or soldier on 
with the rest of the agenda items. Mr. Whittaker and Ms. Binnebose would like to 
solider on. The rest of the Board agreed. The Board did take a brief break to eat dinner. 
5 – Chair and Vice-Chair Election Action Items 6:00 PM 
Ms. Binnebose asked Ms. Larsen to introduce herself and review the election 
procedures. Ms. Larsen shared her background before coming to Public Lands working 
in the financial sector as a Financial Coach for a non-profit organization. She is very 
excited to join the Public Lands team and help support the Board. She will also be 
helping with the internal Employee Advisory Board within Public Lands focusing on 
employee recognition. Ms. Larsen handed out paper ballots for the chair and vice-chair 
election. She reviewed the election procedure again in the event of a tie: they can 
either re-vote or wait until the next meeting. Ms. Binnebose stated that per the 
bylaws, “The current chair shall solicit two members of the Board who are neither 
officers nor a nominee to conduct the vote and count ballots.” Ms. Binnebose asked 
Ms. Finch and Mr. Wiley to count the ballots. Ms. Hewson asked if members could vote 
for themselves. Mr. Scrivner said yes. Mr. Wiley and Ms. Finch each counted for chair 
and vice-chair to confirm the ballot count. 

Mr. Wiley shared the chair votes. Ms. Binnebose was elected chair. 

Ms. Finch shared the vice-chair votes. Since there is a Board of 11, the vice-chair needs 
to have at least six votes to be nominated. Mr. Allen shared that the Board is now 10 
as Ms. Ngo resigned from the Board the day prior. The member with the highest votes 
for vice-chair had five in the count. Ms. Finch suggested dropping the member with the 
lowest vote count and voting again. The Board agreed. The two new vice-chair 
nominations are Ms. Pehrson and Mr. Scrivner. Ms. Larsen passed out new ballot 

10 mins 



forms with Ms. Pehrson and Mr. Scrivner on the ballot. Mr. Wiley and Ms. Finch 
recounted the ballots. After the recount, Mr. Scrivner was elected vice-chair. 
6 – Board Discussion and Action Items 6:20 PM 
Review Bylaws. Discuss Board Member Responsibilities and Subcommittee 
requirements.  

Ms. Binnebose explained the purpose of this discussion was for the Board to have a 
chance to review their Bylaws and allow for subcommittees to review subcommittee 
requirements. Ms. Binnebose asked the Bylaws subcommittee if they had anything 
they’d like to share or if it should just be an informal, open discussion. The Board 
members all had a paper copy of the Bylaws. Ms. Cannon referenced page five of the 
bylaws and reiterated the Bylaws were written for the Board. She reminded the Board 
that subcommittees are allowed to be formed and should be presented to the chair for 
approval with the following details (referenced Bylaws bullet points): Committee Type, 
Committee Membership, Work Objective, Timeline, and Committee Reporting. Any 
new subcommittee formations should be on the agenda. Ms. Cannon explained that 
work gets done on boards through subcommittees. Mr. Whittaker asked for clarity on 
the Board Chair establishing a subcommittee versus a Board member establishing a 
subcommittee. Ms. Cannon explained that sometimes the Chair is aware of things in 
advance and that they may have some insights on opportunities for subcommittees to 
form. Mr. Whittaker shared that he feels like the Bylaws read as though the Chair can 
create a subcommittee without bringing it to the Board. Ms. Cannon said it’s 
something that could be modified. Ms. Finch added that this subsection on 
subcommittees could be further flushed out after their experiences with 
subcommittees now being formed and work being done outside of the Board. Ms. 
Finch proposed that the subcommittee section be removed from the Board Member 
Responsibilities section and be its own section within the Bylaws. She offered some 
suggestions for how this new section could be written. 

Mr. Whittaker shared he felt it could be challenging to meet the Board Member 
Responsibilities of serving on a minimum of one subcommittee each year, especially 
since there are currently only two active subcommittees. Ms. Cannon shared it’s not 
hard if you are doing your work on the subcommittee. She referenced the new Board 
member packet and newly appointed members are given an outline of their 
responsibilities. Mr. Whittaker stated he feels there are not enough subcommittees 
established for Board members to join. Ms. Binnebose stated there are three 
subcommittees: communications, trails, and 501c3. Mr. Whittaker asked if everyone 
on the Board was involved with a subcommittee. Ms. Cannon said there are technically 
no subcommittees formed since none of the subcommittees submitted their official 
request as stated by the Bylaws to the Board. Ms. Finch asked if it was written or 
verbal. Mr. Whittaker referenced his submission for a subcommittee during the 
November 2021 meeting. He said they are updating their written document via what 
the Bylaws state. Ms. Finch said they could refine the section under Board Member 
Responsibilities for Board members participating on an active subcommittee. Board 
continued discussing details and responsibilities around subcommittees. 

Ms. Finch referenced City code 2.9 involving Boards and Commissions. She shared that 
under City ordinance 2.07.13 for all Boards within the City, committees (subcommittee 

40 mins 



under PNUT) may include non-board members. However, it’s a further opportunity for 
the Board to refine how they want to permit non-board members. Ms. Cannon said 
some subcommittees will involve an expert, and while they are not part of the 
decision-making process, they are there to provide information for the final product. 
She likes the idea of having other points of view to enhance the work a subcommittee 
is doing, and, what she worries about, is those folks who aren’t PNUT members. Ms. 
Pehrson addressed the concern of them advocating for only certain types of groups. 
Mr. Whittaker shared the examples of the Arts Council and Design Board. They have 
subject matter experts or they are on other related boards. Mr. Whittaker went on to 
express that Eric Edelman is their subject matter expert for the trails subcommittee. 
He feels they are integral as voting members because of their expertise. He used the 
example of fundraising down on the Arts Council allowed for a lot of work to be done 
for that board. Ms. Hewson agreed that having an expert on a subcommittee is crucial. 
Her concern is whether they are a voting member. She finds this to be problematic and 
inclusive to have one subject matter expert when there could be others out there. She 
feels the trails subcommittee could be better defined as a working group, and as a 
working group, they should engage with other stakeholder representatives to make 
sure it is more holistic. If the trails subcommittee continues forward under its current 
conditions, Ms. Hewson feels she cannot participate in that subcommittee any longer. 
Mr. Whittaker shared Ms. Hewson can invite another subject matter expert. Ms. 
Cannon said she feels like this conversation is getting into the weeds and to circle back 
to the purpose of this discussion for subcommittees: to better define their 
subcommittee outlines. 

Ms. Cannon expressed that she doesn’t understand the scope of work the trails 
subcommittee is doing and asked for someone to share. Ms. Hewson reminded 
everyone that the Bylaws were written before the formation of the trails 
subcommittee. They should take this opportunity to flush out some of these points in 
the Bylaws and further attribute subcommittee expectations. Mr. Whittaker continued 
to share about the trails subcommittee. Ms. Finch said she felt like they were getting 
into the weeds of the trails subcommittee, and that the Board did vote to have the 
subcommittee be in existence. The larger issue now is the concerns of non-board 
members on subcommittees. She would like some high-level guidelines to be on a 
subcommittee. She suggested the idea every four months, subcommittees come to the 
Board for a full vote again for affirmation and confirmation from the whole PNUT 
Board, as well as, rotating Board members on subcommittees. She would like more 
authority as a PNUT Board member over subcommittees and approve non-Board 
members. Board continued to discuss the trails subcommittee. Ms. Benally reminded 
the Board they can utilize an ex officio as an expert for a subcommittee. She suggested 
utilizing the 501c3 subcommittee to answer any additional questions a member may 
have to partner with an expert. Board reviewed the 2.90 City code again for Boards & 
Commissions. Board continued to discuss details around their Bylaws. 
Ms. Pehrson proposed they create a file-sharing system where the Board and 
subcommittees can share their work for everyone on the Board to review. Ms. Cannon 
stated they can establish this on their own without staff. The Board currently utilizes 
Google. Ms. Binnebose proposed each subcommittee define its guidelines per the 
bylaws. She said the bylaws subcommittee could reform to add a bullet point for 
subcommittees to identify specific deliverables and define a working group versus a 



subcommittee, using an ex officio member as an expert. The goal is to establish a 
framework where it doesn’t matter what the trails subcommittee looks like in five 
years, but better a better framework for forming new subcommittees. Ms. Cannon 
asked Ms. Binnebose to confirm if she wants the subcommittees to type up their 
subcommittee details per the bylaws to submit in the next meeting. Ms. Binnebose 
confirmed yes. Ms. Binnebose suggests that having all this typed out for everyone to 
have access to and review, could speed up board meetings, and everyone would 
understand what’s happening on each subcommittee. The Board discussed possible 
updates to the Bylaws, how to incorporate Public Lands staff, and other expectations. 
Mr. Wiley inquired about the purpose of a subcommittee. Ms. Cannon explained how 
subcommittees worked.  

Mr. Wiley asked how the subcommittees impact staff. Mr. Whittaker shared an 
example of dog policy and how they research to advise staff. Ms. Riker shared an 
example of dogs being off-leash and a stakeholder committee/group formed, and they 
selected different people from different stakeholder groups and staff to attend. Then 
as a group, they decided what the recommendation should be to the City. She also 
used the example of the Bike Park on “I” street and how they selected a group of 
people to discuss further. She shared that some things may be bigger than a 
subcommittee, and it doesn’t just affect the Public Lands Department. Her 
recommendation would be for the Board to suggest a stakeholder group form for 
larger projects, like the example with e-bikes. Mr. Whittaker asked if the Board could 
write a letter proposing a stakeholder group. Ms. Cannon added that as a 
subcommittee, they could do the research around e-bike policies and share that. This 
would help staff and inform the stakeholder group about bigger policy decisions. Ms. 
Riker expressed that dogs in the Foothills and e-bikes are bigger than the PNUT Board, 
but subcommittees could help by researching to feed that to a larger stakeholder 
group. Board continued to discuss how subcommittees can help Public Lands tackle 
issues around these examples given and further discussed how subcommittees form. 
The Board discussed how the staff will use the PNUT Board as a sounding board.  

Mr. Whittaker shared how Tyler Fonarow, Public Lands Recreational Trails Manager, 
presented to the trails subcommittee ideas for some trail alignments to get their 
feedback. Mr. Scrivner asked if that meeting’s discussion should have come to the rest 
of the Board. Mr. Whittaker expressed that if the rest of the Board had been a part of 
that presentation, getting everyone’s feedback would’ve caused the meeting to run 
long, and it takes away the work the trails subcommittee is doing and puts it back on 
the PNUT Board. Ms. Cannon reiterated this is why it’s important to define your scope 
of work and present it to the full Board for approval. Mr. Whittaker agreed. 

Mr. Carroll shared he came to be on the Board with the biggest issue in his mind with 
trails is e-bikes. He is hearing tonight it might be too big of an issue for the PNUT Board 
or trails subcommittee to tackle, and it needs to be a part of a bigger agenda for the 
City-sponsored group. He feels it’s hard to break into the agenda for meetings. Mr. 
Scrivner brought up that they have a subcommittee section on the agenda. Mr. 
Whittaker said he may want to present something that could take 90 minutes, and he 
asked if that was the time to do so. Mr. Carroll was also concerned as it sounds like, to 
him, the trails subcommittee isn’t an official subcommittee. Ms. Finch reaffirmed 



that’s not what the Board is saying. Ms. Finch went on to ask if Board and non-Board 
members have been on a subcommittee for over a year now and if is it time to switch 
people out. Mr. Carroll asked how the Board would determine who would be a good or 
bad expert to bring onto a subcommittee. Mr. Whittaker added the question of how 
the Board determines how long an expert can participate on a subcommittee. Board 
continued to discuss the trails subcommittee and how they would like to see a revised 
subcommittee with better-defined outlines per subcommittee bylaws. Ms. Hewson 
believes the trails issue is bigger than a subcommittee. She thinks it needs a working 
group where they bring in subject matter experts, and however well-intentioned the 
trails subcommittee members are, they are not covering all the bases. She fully 
recognizes that subcommittee member Eric Edelman is an expert, but he can’t be an 
expert in everything. She thinks a subcommittee has to be specific and targeted with 
these concrete outcomes and time defined. She feels the topic of the Foothills is 
broader. Mr. Whittaker added he has been on other City boards he’s been involved in 
and has had standing committees that have no timeline because the nature of the 
project doesn’t have a timeline. 

Ms. Riker brought up they should address Mr. Carroll’s concern about not being able to 
get a topic onto the agenda. Even if it’s a massive thing, like e-bikes, it should be 
brought to this Board to discuss. Sometimes when they have a massive thing, like their 
Master Plan, it’s too big for even their department to deal with. They then put in a CIP 
request and ask a consultant to help them develop that. They’ll talk to City Council and 
do public engagement and other groups involved to do a lot of that work. Public Lands 
is still involved in it just like the Board was with the Master Plan, but it’s so big that 
can’t be tackled. Ms. Cannon brought up that every month she gets an email asking 
what she wants on the agenda. Ms. Cannon invited Mr. Carroll to put in his request 
then. Ms. Finch spoke about her time as a chair and requested agenda topics from 
Board members. Ms. Riker said she is aware that Public Lands staff have taken a lot of 
their time to discuss certain topics, like CIP. Ms. Benally brought up their Bylaws and if 
a member wants an amendment, they need to do it in writing. That would clarify what 
questions they have and how the Board will address them. She continued to say it’s 
important for subcommittees to define those subcommittee bullet points, as after 2-3 
hours of work, those subject matter experts may start charging a fee.  

Mr. Wiley agreed with Mr. Carroll that he doesn’t know when to bring up issues 
happening in his community. Ms. Binnebose said it should be brought up during the 
“Board Comment” period and that it is a standing agenda item. In reference to Ms. 
Finch’s point, “Request for future agenda items”, these are standing agenda items 
where Board members should speak up to share what’s happening in their 
communities and this is what you want on the agenda. Mr. Wiley shared that as a new 
member, he didn’t know that was the appropriate place or time to bring up his issues 
and concerns. Ms. Binnebose asked if this is an onboarding issue for new members and 
if they should sit down with staff or the chair, go through line-by-line on-standing 
agenda items, and explain what each item means. Ms. Riker shared that now that Ms. 
Larsen is in the role of department liaison, she could do a first stab at what an 
onboarding process looks like and bring it to the Board for feedback. Ms. Riker added it 
might be helpful to rearrange the agenda items. Ms. Pehrson asked if there could be a 
subcommittee for onboarding. 



Mr. Carroll asked how they are going to reestablish the Bylaws. Ms. Cannon made a 
motion to reestablish the bylaws subcommittee to update subcommittee five bullet 
point requirements. Mr. Carroll seconded the motion. Ms. Cannon, Ms. Finch, and Mr. 
Wiley would be members of the bylaws subcommittee. Ms. Hewson asked when the 
Board would have the opportunity to provide comments on the updated Bylaws. Ms. 
Cannon said with the re-establishment of the bylaws subcommittee, they would bring 
by the next Board meeting, the items in the Bylaws that indicate what they are 
supposed to do and that will include a timeline. To add to Ms. Hewson’s question, Mr. 
Wiley asked where they can give additional feedback on changes. Ms. Cannon said 
they would have a Google folder that everyone can review and see by the next Board 
meeting. Ms. Hewson said she is concerned about when they can provide feedback 
and how soon the bylaws subcommittee wants that information. Ms. Finch said once 
they come out with a first draft, they can share it before the next Board meeting for 
members to review. Board discussed further details on a shared Google folder and 
drive. Board voted on Ms. Cannon’s proposal to reestablish the bylaws subcommittee 
to update the Bylaws. The vote carried unanimously. Ms. Binnebose summarized the 
action items for the Board, and subcommittees, and updated the Bylaws. A Google 
folder will be shared with everyone to more easily track and review what current 
subcommittees are working on and give feedback on amending the Bylaws. Ms. 
Binnebose would like to table this discussion. 
7 – Break 7:00 PM 
8 – Board Discussion and Action Items Continued 7:15 PM 
Discussion of board powers, duties, and values. 

Ms. Binnebose said this section is similar to their discussion on Bylaws. Ms. Binnebose 
mentioned Mr. Carroll had mentioned values and passions as it pertains to the Board. 
Mr. Carroll said where that had come from was when Mr. Wiley was talking about 
recreational use before CIP. He shared how recreational sports are a big part of his life. 
He went on to say that when they went to rank the CIP items, recreational projects 
were at the top of his list because of his passion for recreational sports. Knowing 
people’s passions and where they are on the Board is important to him. He appreciates 
all the Board members’ viewpoints and wants to be able to honor those and better 
understand them.  

Ms. Finch asked if they would like to discuss the Powers and Duties section. Ms. 
Binnebose explained this discussion is a refresher of what their Powers and Duties are 
within the Board and to bring that energy to what they can do. Ms. Binnebose 
acknowledged Mr. Carroll’s statement. Ms. Finch encouraged members to familiarize 
themselves, read, and reflect on them as this defines their responsibilities as Board 
members and whether they are doing everything they can as a Board. The Board had a 
paper copy of these Powers and Duties. Ms. Cannon thinks they have done a really 
good job this last year. She brought up a point, and it could be a question for staff, 
Item E under Powers and Duties, operation and management policies, and best 
practices for things like special events. She would like to see more of the operational 
side of things and data and if there needs to be any more advisory in this. Mr. Scrivner 
shared that this ties into Item C, discuss priorities for 2023, and things you’d like to 
hear and review from staff. Mr. Scrivner shared he doesn’t have any concerns with the 

60 mins 



high-level responsibilities of the Board. What Mr. Scrivner is looking for moving 
forward are what kind of items can we ask of staff.  

Mr. Carroll shared he is appreciative of the information staff has provided and he 
would like to be more proactive in getting topics on the agenda that he’s passionate 
about. Mr. Scrivner asked for an example. Mr. Carroll said he believes the City is facing 
a major issue around e-bikes, and the City should be ahead of this issue, and they 
aren’t. Ms. Riker said this is the place for Board members to talk about those issues. 
Board continued to discuss some aspects of e-bike issues and the Park’s involvement. 
Ms. Binnebose asked Ms. Larsen to add Mr. Carroll’s passion for e-bikes as an agenda 
item for the 2023, general city discussion on e-bikes. Mr. Whittaker shared that this 
was a topic he wanted to discuss in their next meeting. Ms. Binnebose asked if the 
Board would like to discuss their passion more or move on to the next agenda item of 
CIPs. Mr. Wiley stated he would like to know everyone’s values and know his fellow 
Board members better.  

The Board members went around and shared a little bit about themselves and why 
they decided to be on the PNUT Board.  
Create a written process for annual CIP and budget initiatives prioritization + Formalize 
standard plan for the annual retreat. 

The Board had a paper copy for a written process for the annual CIP prioritization 
review. Ms. Hewson thanked the Board member who had already gone into the shared 
Google Doc to review it. Ms. Hewson asked the Board if they thought any major 
sections are missing. She added that in the version the Board has, since then, she’s 
added a couple of sections; one around acronyms and the roles of City Council, CDCIP, 
and Mayor. That is her first question if any other sections are missing. She stated it 
needs to reflect all the PNUT Board member’s input and to serve as a gap for new 
members on how the ranking process for CIP works and developed over the last few 
years. Her main questions are if a subcommittee should be formed or if people would 
volunteer to take on different sections. Ms. Riker said staff can help with the roles 
section of the City Council, CDCIP, and the Mayor. Ms. Cannon said she is looking for a 
simple process to make it easier, especially for new members. She thanked Ms. 
Hewson for putting it together, and she doesn’t know if it’s something they need a 
subcommittee for or for the Board to finish out.  

Mr. Carroll said he feels CIP has been a big success for the Board. Mr. Carroll said he 
would like to build on their success and how to determine how they can make it 
better. Ms. Hewson agreed and said they need to define what is the process of 
completing this and how to improve on it in the future. Mr. Whittaker shared his 
experience on another board he was on. When they had grants to fulfill, which were 
on a predictable timeline, they had a subcommittee to deal with it. It made Board 
meetings go faster, it was really efficient, and it was a rotating board that people 
served on for like a year. Mr. Whittaker reprimanded a standing committee since CIP is 
one of those topics that take up so much of the Board’s time. Mr. Millar wanted to 
make the Board aware of the 5-year capital plan that will be developed and how it will 
do a lot of the monotonous groundwork for the Board. It may require a subcommittee 
with staff for developing that plan every five years. He stated the goal of the plan is to 

25 mins 



make CIP and other funding application processes easier because they would have 
already developed their priorities and timelines. He supports whatever approach the 
Board wants, but wanted to make the Board aware. Board continued to discuss 
improving the CIP process.  

Ms. Hewson expressed that another reason to have a process in place is for new Board 
members to understand the CIP ranking process, but also the rationale for why they do 
it and how it’s done. Ms. Hewson agreed with having a step-by-step process, but it’s 
only one piece of it. She thinks what it needs is collective head input from the PNUT 
Board to flush this out and does it address the gaps that new members felt in the 
process. She asked how to engage the PNUT Board members to complete the 
document. Ms. Finch asked if newer members could read it through to see if it makes 
sense to them and that staff could help fill in the missing pieces. Ms. Riker said it 
would be great if the Board could come up with the why of their selection process and 
establishing criteria. She shared some criteria she follows when making these kinds of 
decisions. Ms. Pehrson said they have the justification part of their survey and that 
may be part of the process is to go through each of those comments. Ms. Binnebose 
asked if the staff are looking for more established criteria. Ms. Riker said what she 
would like to see is a consensus from the entire Board of why they put forth their 
suggestions to the Council. Mr. Whittaker agreed. He felt overwhelmed with how long 
it took to give a detailed response on top of everything else he was doing. Ms. Riker 
said it could take a subcommittee to put together established criteria. Board continued 
to discuss how to establish criteria for the CIP ranking process. 

Mr. Wiley said when he was going through the ranking process, one of the things he 
was concerned with was not having enough information about the projects and 
knowing the staff's viewpoint. He said the staff knows more about the projects and he 
understands there are certain things he wasn't privy to knowing. If he could have a 
better understanding of the projects and their impact, it would help better advise the 
staff and create define reasoning. Ms. Riker said another option is for staff could share 
how they’ve ranked, what they’ve ranked them on, and why. The Board could give 
feedback and this could alleviate Board confusion. Mr. Millar said it really is a matter of 
time. Staff is coming to the Board not wanting to take up a quarter of every PNUT 
meeting for the entire year as soon as they have the information about the CIP 
applications. He explained it takes a couple of months for staff to review applications 
as they come before they could present their prioritizations to the Board. He thinks the 
rationale and the impact does take more time than just the October, November, and 
December meetings to discuss. He said he would support the Board if they want to 
start it earlier or change the process, but the staff’s limitation is on the contingency CIP 
applications, which they don’t see until October.  

Ms. Riker shared that the City is also working on criteria for constituent applications 
and all of the CIP applications. They hired a new capital asset manager who is going to 
compile all the components from all the different master plans to help determine 
should this project be done or not. Ms. Pehrson asked if they could use those criteria. 
Ms. Riker stated that Public Lands has its own criteria and they could share those with 
the Board. She continued to say that Parks would know more about why a certain park 
needs activation in it, how those activation elements are based on proximity to other 



parks, and what those needs are. Ms. Riker shared she feels like the process doesn’t 
have that backbone. Board continued to discuss criteria and determine how to update 
the CIP process throughout the year.  

Ms. Hewson motioned to keep the CIP prioritization document as is for now to 
potentially consider forming a subcommittee if needed, as the year evolves. Ms. 
Cannon seconded the motion. Ms. Finch asked who would take ownership of the 
document to make sure it was in the right shared Google folder. Ms. Hewson said she 
would coordinate with Ms. Binnebose to put it in a central location. Ms. Pehrson said 
she would like a calendar or tables that would list when, generally, things happen, and 
this is when we need your recommendation. Ms. Hewson agreed. Ms. Binnebose said 
she feels like they have the implementation pretty well dialed in and a good system to 
replicate. It’s now the criteria they need to be focusing on. Ms. Cannon asked if they 
could add that as an agenda item as they get toward the next CIP process. Board 
continued to discuss the timeframe of the CIP process. Ms. Cannon said the criteria 
should be established by August. 
Discuss 2023 staff presentations and agenda items. 

Ms. Riker shared some recurring things on the agenda (some can move): 
• January: Board elections
• February: Review full write-up for budget initiatives, Board recommendations

for the annual budget, Open Meetings Law training, GRAMA training
• March: Annual Report, Goal Accomplishment Metrics
• September: Consolidated fee schedule review, Ethics training
• October: Initial CIPS projections discussions, CFS recommendations
• November: Final CIP projection review
• December: Board nominations, Board overview, Initial department priorities

budget
She would like to add Legislative Intents as it’s not something that has been brought to 
the Board as often. She said every year Council has legislative intents for staff. Council 
will ask departments ask them questions and staff has a year to contemplate and 
answer them. Two years ago, Council asked Public Lands, what’s it going to take to 
improve the maintenance of our parks. This year Council asked them about reducing 
the use of fertilizer and pesticides.  
She also shared ad hoc agendas that can come up randomly throughout the year: 

• Budget amendments
• Constructions concepts and design
• Land acquisitions and dispositions
• Master plans
• Operation and management policies
• Donations

The Board suggested building a monthly calendar. Ms. Riker added she would like to 
share next month the Mayor’s 2023 plan and how it impacts Public Lands.  

The Board went around and shared their requests for staff presentations and future 
agenda items: 

15 mins 



• 501c3 presentation
• Riverside
• Recreation access
• Park Rangers
• Trails Subcommittee
• Glendale Park
• Bond project updates
• Specific events happening in each district
• Current issues
• E-Bikes
• Indigenous plants
• Pesticide use
• CAPRA

Ms. Riker shared that the staff has been working with a consultant and have a 
presentation ready for the Board for 501c3. Ms. Riker asked if the Board wants a staff 
presentation, and if they could write up their concerns or things Board would like staff 
to address, that would be great. She needs as much detail to make sure she gets the 
right people there. Ms. Finch shared that Board members are allowed to do 
presentations to the Board on their concerns. Ms. Binnebose reminded Mr. Wiley that 
if there is one certain topic he would like to address, he could form a subcommittee. 
Board rediscussed the action item for subcommittees to complete by the next Board 
meeting. Mr. Scrivner requested a quarterly update from staff about the bond 
projects. Ms. Riker said a dashboard will be coming out for the bond projects. Board 
continued to discuss agenda item request topics. Ms. Riker shared that Public Land has 
a newsletter and webpage that has updates for each district. She asked the Board if 
they see a district that hasn’t been updated recently to let staff know and it will get 
updated. Board discussed options for different meeting locations. 
9 – Confirmation of Next Meeting, Board Comments & Future Agenda Items 8:55 PM 
Board subcommittee updates as needed 

• Trails Subcommittee
• Communication Subcommittee
• 501c3 Subcommittee

Board comment and question period 
Next meeting: February 2, 2023 
Request for future agenda items 

Ms. Binnebose said she feels they addressed the other agenda items, board comment 
and question period, and request for future agenda items, covered. 
Ms. Binnebose motioned to adjourn. Mr. Wiley seconded the motion.  
10 – Adjourn 9:15 PM 



FY 2023 - 24 Budget Insight

Name of Insight Inflationary & Contractual Increases

Background

Each year the Public Lands Department has operational expense increases related to 
inflationary and other contractual price increases.  This budget initiative addresses cost 
increases to multiple expense categories related to utilities, fleet fuel and maintenance, 
operational contracts, and supplies.  If these cost increases are not fully funded this would 
essentially be a budget reduction to the department and respective programs. 

Details

Utility costs increases are provided by Public Utilities and other utility providers. Fleet fuel 
and maintenance cost increases are provided by the Fleet Division.  Inflationary and other 
contractual costs increases are evaluated internally to determine which  operational supply 
categories are experiencing increases and which contracts will have increases.  Typically, the 
The Department will use the latest CPI for inflationary costs related to operational materials 
& supplies. 

Brief Summary 
The department will request these cost increases to be able to maintain the same level of 
service. 

Impact to Budget Total Department Request (GF) includes Equipment $354,000)

Total Ongoing Costs: Quantity Total Ongoing Cost: Amount Annualized
1 2331 Electrical Power $0) $0)

1 233201 Natural Gas $0) $0)

1 2333 Water $132,600) $132,600)

1 233301 Sewer $4,600) $4,600)

1 233302 Storm Water $2,300) $2,300)

Utility Cost Increase $139,500) $139,500)

1 239001 Fleet Fuel $23,500) $23,500)

1 239010 Fleet Maint: Repair $1,900) $1,900)

1 239012 Fleet Maint: Accident Fault $600) $600)

1 239013 Fleet Maint: Elective

Fleet Maint & Fuel Cost Increase $26,000) $26,000)

1 224701 Irrigation Supplies $4,100) $4,100)

1 225601 T Shirt Apparel $700) $700)

1 2261 CEMENT $100) $100)

1 2263 FORM LUMBER $100) $100)

1 2264 STEEL $100) $100)

1 2267 Paint & Painting Supplies $1,900) $1,900)

1 2274 Janitorial Supplies $900) $900)

DRAFT



1 2278 Grounds Supplies $800) $800)

1 2284 SAND / GRAVEL $2,000) $2,000)

1 2285 SALT $0) $0)

1 2292 Chemicals $1,700) $1,700)

1 229202 FERTILIZER $5,300) $5,300)

1 2295 Safety Equipment $900) $900)

1 2298 Small Tools & Equipment $1,800) $1,800)

1 2299 OTHER MATERIAL & SUPPLIES $1,000) $1,000)

1 2329 Other Professional & Tech Serv $70,000) $70,000) Other contracts

1 2349 OTHER MC'S (Forestry Tree Care) $88,600) $88,600) Tree Pruning

1 2396 Waste Disposal $5,200) $5,200)

1 2515 Porta-Potty Rentals $3,300) $3,300)

Inflationary & Contractual Cost Increase $188,500) $188,500)

Total Ongoing Cost: $354,000) $354,000)

Relation to Mayor's Plan

Outcomes

Reimagine Nature Master Plan 
Approaches for Action (Closest you 

can find to support the initiative) DRAFT



FY 2023 - 24 Budget Insight

Name of Insight New Properties & Amenities 

Background

Each year SLC Public Lands acquires new property and or amenities through the City’s CIP process.  
Budgeting for ongoing maintenance (supplies and staff) of these facilities is requested once the 
Division understands the date the project will be turned over to that Division for management.  This 
year we have multiple sites that will need various amounts of funding and staffing to steward the 
new amenities, as well as several semi-administrative positions to activate new facilities, support 
communications and engagement and maintain critical assets including signage. 

Details

(1) Park Maintenance Technician Groundskeeper (Grade 19 – 0413100) - This full-time position will
be responsible for the landscape maintenance at Folsom Trail, Mt View Corridor (11 acres) and
North
(1) Sr Natural Resources Technician (Grade 16 - 0414300) - This full-time position will be responsible
for the landscape maintenance at Cornell Riverside Natural Area wetlands and help oversee
seasonal maintenance crews at other nearby natural areas including Three Creeks.

Brief Summary 
Maintenance costs related to new properties and amenities added to the Public Lands Department 
inventory.

Impact to Budget Total Department Request (GF) includes Equipment $498,350)

Total Non-Departmental Budget Impacts (Fleet & IMS) $148,000)

One-Time Cost: Quantity Total One-Time Cost: Amount
2 ¾ - ton pickup trucks $65,000) $130,000)

0 IMS Computers $2,500) $0)

Total One-Time Cost: $130,000)

DRAFT



Total Ongoing Costs: Quantity Total Ongoing Cost: Amount Annualized

1 Park Maintenance Tech (grade 19) at 10 months $85,000) $70,600) $85,000)

1 Sr Natural Resource Tech (grade 16) at 10 months $72,000) $59,800) $72,000)

(8,395) Seasonal Employees (hours) at 10 months $18.30) $127,500) $153,633)

1 Associated materials & supplies $47,450) $47,450) $47,450)

1 Contractual Management Services $45,000) $45,000) $45,000)

2 Fleet Fuel $4,000) $8,000) $8,000)

2 Fleet Maintenance (Fleet Pays) $5,000) $10,000) $0)

Total Ongoing Cost: $368,350) $411,083)

Relation to Mayor's Plan Our Community: Inclusive, Equitable Opportunities, Safe and Affordable Neighborhoods

Outcomes Ø  Greater equity in service throughout the city

Ø  Improve neighborhood appearance 

Reimagine Nature Master Plan Approaches 
for Action (Closest you can find to support 

the initiative)

Protect: Action 2.1 A  Provide additional maintenance, activation and improvement resources to 
west-side parks in order to promote a similar degree of attractiveness and usability compared to 
east-side parks (equity, not equality). Secure park maintenance funding for the Jordan River 
Parkway equivalent to those resources allocated to Liberty Park and other regionally-significant 
assets, on a per-acre basis.DRAFT



FY 2023 - 24 Budget Insight

Name of Insight Additional Planning Team Capacity (3 Planners)

Background

The Public Lands Department’s Planning Team (3 FTEs) is tasked with funding applications, 
project engagement and development, cross-departmental coordination, and project 
implementation tasks required to deliver public lands projects. These additional full-time 
planners are required to better manage the existing project backlog of approximately 100 
projects. The current ratio of projects per planner leads to project delivery delays and, 
therefore, budget overruns and missing opportunities to meet community expectations. In 
addition, greater demands on our public lands system, higher standards for public 
involvement, more opportunities to collaborate with external partners, and dramatic 
increases in capital funding mean that planning and project management needs far outstrip 
this team’s current capacity. 

Details
•(3) FTE Public Lands Planners (Grade 28) dedicated to the planning and management of the 
Department's existing project backlog. Add language on project number ideal.

Brief Summary 
Funding applications, project engagement and development, cross-departmental 
coordination, and project implementation tasks related to the planning and delivery of public 
lands projects.

Impact to Budget Total Department Request (GF) includes Equipment $372,141)

Total Non-Departmental Budget Impacts (Fleet & IMS) $61,500)

One-Time Cost: Quantity Total One-Time Cost: Amount
1 Compact fuel-efficient vehicle $45,000) $45,000)

3 IMS Computers $2,500) $7,500)

Total One-Time Cost: $52,500)

Total Ongoing Costs: Quantity Total Ongoing Cost: Amount Annualized

3 Public Lands Planners (grade 28) at 10 months $115,920) $288,641) $347,760) Includes a 3% increase for FY24

1 Training, professional devlpmnt, supplies, software $22,000) $22,000) $22,000)

1 Fleet Fuel $4,000) $4,000) $4,000)

1 Fleet Maintenance $5,000) $5,000) $0)

Total Ongoing Cost: $319,641) $373,760)

Relation to Mayor's Plan Our Growth: Harness Salt Lake City’s growth for the good of all residents and promoting a renaissance of culture and commerce that is obtainable for all.

Our City Family: Support our employees’ physical, mental, and economic well-being and prioritize our workforce to recruit and retain the best public servants.

Outcomes Ø  More efficient and higher quality project delivery

Ø  Lower per planner workload and less staff burnout

Ø  Improved community engagement and trust

Reimagine Nature Master Plan 
Approaches for Action (Closest you 

can find to support the initiative)

Strategy G-1: Be proactive and strategic about growth of the Public Lands System
Action 1.1 A  Increase staffing to meet capacity demands of planning & projects team, 
achieve reasonable project loads for Public Lands PMs, and free up capacity for the many 
policy and programmatic planning documents recommended as action items.

DRAFT



FY 2023 - 24 Budget Insight

Name of Insight Trails and Natural Lands Maintenance Enhancement

Background

In 2004 Salt Lake City voters passed a bond to help fund the acquisition of open space 
properties, and in 2008 the first employee was hired to manage those areas. Open space 
properties help provide access to a growing population of constituents who seek respite in 
natural areas, and to protect valuable water resources and wildlife habitat. This budget 
initiative will help support the Public Lands Department in its efforts to improve the 
ecological health and resiliency of public green spaces, and provide a dedicated budget for 
biodiversity and habitat enhancement. Currently the Natural Lands team has two full-time 
field staff  who oversee a seasonal team of eight technicians in managing almost 2,000 acres 
of open space properties. 

Details

(1) FTE Restoration Ecologist (Grade 24) (Shift from PT to FTE)
     -Provide highly technical and specialized guidance, direction and support for the 
      development and implementation of projects on Public Lands properties focused on 
      biodiversity, pollinators, native plant restoration, and habitat function. 

(2) FTE Senior Natural Resources Technician (Grade 19)
(2080 hr) Seasonal Natural Resources Technicians 
     -Compliment existing field-team resources with capacity for progressive expansion of 
biodiversity and restoration projects across Public Lands, including pre-restoration weed 
control and site preparation, post-restoration weed control and watering, planting, seeding, 
fencing and irrigation maintenance, and similar tasks.
Materials, supplies and vehicles to support the above functions. 

Brief Summary 

The Salt Lake City Natural Lands team provides ecological restoration and enhancement to 
properties, noxious and invasive weed control, data collection, litter cleanup, environmental 
education to visitors, and maintenance of native vegetation, landscape areas, natural surface 
trails, amenities, signage, and irrigation.

Impact to Budget Total Department Request (GF) includes Equipment $440,300)

Total Non-Departmental Budget Impacts (Fleet & IMS) $239,500)

One-Time Cost: Quantity Total One-Time Cost: Amount
2 1/2 - ton pickup truck $60,000) $120,000)

1 one-ton dump bed truck $85,000) $85,000)

3 IMS Computers $2,500) $7,500)

Total One-Time Cost: $212,500)

Total Ongoing Costs: Quantity Total Ongoing Cost: Amount Annualized FOF Funding

1 Restoration Ecologist (24) new title $90,000) $74,700) $90,000) $90,000)

2 Sr. Natural Resources Technician (19) $72,000) $119,500) $144,000) $144,000)

2080 Seasonal Employees (hours) $18.30) $31,600) $38,065) $38,065)

2 Associated materials & supplies $10,000) $20,000) $20,000) $20,000)

3 Fleet Fuel $4,000) $12,000) $12,000) $12,000)

DRAFT



3 Fleet Maintenance (Fleet Pays) $5,000) $15,000) $0) $0)

PT Conversion Savings ($45,000) ($45,000) ($45,000)

Total Ongoing Cost: $227,800) $259,065) $259,065)

Relation to Mayor's Plan Our Community: Inclusive, Equitable Opportunities, Safe and Affordable Neighborhoods

    Our Environment: We will lead the way on resilience and stewardship, protecting our natural systems while addressing social inequities, advancing development, and addressing climate change.

Outcomes 1.  Greater equity in service throughout the city

2.  Improve appearance of the City's Natural Lands

3.  Reduce the spread of weeds to private property

4.  Expand bio-diversity of public lands and position SLC Public Lands as a leader for ecological health

Reimagine Nature Master Plan 
Approaches for Action (Closest 

you can find to support the 
initiative)

Sustain: 1.1E, 1.2E, 2.2C, 2.2E, 2.3B
Protect: 1.1E, 1.2A

DRAFT



FY 2023 - 24 Budget Insight

Name of Insight Park Growth & Use Impacts

Background

Parks maintenance reponsibilities have increased in scope and complexity over the last several 
years.  The property maintenance team has been challenged with a significant increase in 
vandalism in our Parks.  Broken electrical and irrigation boxes, stolen electrical wire, and 
constant restroom vandalism takes up to 50% of their workload leaving regular maintenance 
of parks failities falling behind. In addition, water conservation efforts due to the ongoing 
drought and extreme summer heat have increased demands on managing our irrigation 
systems. 

Details

(1) Maintenance Electrician IV – (Grade 22 – 000168) The full-time position will support our 
existing Parks Electrician with increasing repairs and replacement from vandalism and ongoing 
maintenance needs.
(1) General Maintenance Worker III – (Grade 21 – 002490) The full-time position will support 
our Property Maintenance team providing support for ongoing maintenance and vandalism 
repairs and replacements.
(1) Irrigation Tech III – (Grade 20 – 002149) The full-time position will support our existing 
Parks irrigation team by providing irrigation services to SLC parks, city medians and trails. 
(1) Central Control Irrigation Specialist (Grade 20 - 002348) The full-time position will support 
our existing Parks irrigation team by managing, parks, RAC, Cemetery, city medians and trails.
(.5) Senior Warehouse Operator – (Grade 15 – 006048) The full-time position is partially 
funded by Golf funds and will support increased warehouse operations needs, order requests, 
and payment processing

Brief Summary 
We propose adding 4.5 FTEs to the Parks Division to assist with increasing demands from 
expansion, increased vandalism, and to manage water efficiency needs.

Impact to Budget Total Department Request (GF) includes Equipment $853,600)

Total Non-Departmental Budget Impacts (Fleet & IMS) $483,500)

One-Time Cost: Quantity Total One-Time Cost: Amount
1 ¾ Ton Utility Bed $65,000) $65,000)

1 1/2 ton trucks $60,000) $60,000)

1 Plumber Truck $75,000) $75,000)

1 Versa Lift Truck $245,000) $245,000)

1 IMS Computers (Central Control Irrigation Specialist) $2,500) $2,500)

DRAFT



Total One-Time Cost: $447,500)

Total Ongoing Costs: Quantity Total Ongoing Cost: Amount Annualized FOF Funding
1 Maintenance Electrician IV – (Grade 22) $98,000) $81,300) $98,000) $98,000)
1 General Maintenance Worker III – (Grade 21) $102,000) $84,700) $102,000) $102,000)
1 Irrigation Tech III – (Grade 20) $97,000) $80,500) $97,000) $97,000)
1 Central Control Irrigation Specialist (Grade 20) $97,000) $80,500) $97,000) $97,000)

0.5 Senior Warehouse Operator – (Grade 15) $75,000) $31,100) $37,500) $37,500) 50% coverd by Golf
6 Associated materials & supplies $2,000) $12,000) $12,000) $12,000)
4 Fleet Fuel $4,000) $16,000) $16,000) $16,000)
4 Fleet Maintenance (Fleet Pays) $5,000) $20,000) $0) $0)

Total Ongoing Cost: $406,100) $459,500) $459,500)

Relation to Mayor's Plan Our Community: Inclusive, Equitable Opportunities, Safe and Affordable Neighborhoods

Outcomes Ø  Greater equity in service throughout the city

Ø  Reduction of vandalism by having presence through the weekend 

 

Reimagine Nature Master Plan 
Approaches for Action (Closest you 

can find to support the initiative)

Protect: Action 2.1 A  Provide additional maintenance, activation and improvement resources 
to west-side parks in order to promote a similar degree of attractiveness and usability 
compared to east-side parks (equity, not equality). Secure park maintenance funding for the 
Jordan River Parkway equivalent to those resources allocated to Liberty Park and other 
regionally-significant assets, on a per-acre basis.

DRAFT



FY 2023 - 24 Budget Insight

Name of Insight Soft Surface Recreational Trail Maintenance Program

Background

In 2020 Salt Lake City Public Lands initiated the Foothills Trail System Plan in the 6000 acres of open space 
designated as the Foothills Natural Area. The plan outlined the design and construction of new trails, 
repairing and integration of select pre-existing trails, the maintenance of system trails, and the ecological 
maintenance of surrounding natural areas. While construction of trails may be funded through CIP funding 
and grants, the long term care for the open space ecology and recreational amenities requires proactive and 
responsive maintenance. There are currently two part-time trails specialists in the PL budget who have 
begun maintenance responsibilities in addition to their work in developing the Trails Plan.

Details
•(1) FTE Senior Natural Resources Technician (Grade 19) 
•(2) FTE Natural Resource Technicians (Grade 16) Transition two Part TIme positions to FTE's                                                                                                                                                       
•(4) seasonal staff at scheduled locations with increased weed and trail maintenance 

Brief Summary 

Weed removal, native planting, trail corridor maintenance, trailhead and access maintenance, wayfinding 
and interpretive signage installation and maintenance, minor trail construction. The current program 
operates under requests of Recreational Trail Manager using Trails & Natural Lands' maintenance funds and 
equipment. In addition to maintenance work in SLC Foothills, this team would also complete maintenance of 
other soft surface trails and bike parks within SLC including, Rose Park Trails, 9Line Bike Park and Parleys 
Historic Nature Park.

Impact to Budget Total Department Request (GF) includes Equipment $397,800)

Total Non-Departmental Budget Impacts (Fleet & IMS) $194,500)

One-Time Cost: Quantity Total One-Time Cost: Amount
1 1/2 Ton pickup trucks $60,000) $60,000)

1 Tacoma $50,000) $50,000)

3 IMS Computers $2,500) $7,500)

1 Program startup tools, equip, materials $50,000) $50,000)

2 Mountain Bikes $2,500) $5,000)

Total One-Time Cost: $172,500)

DRAFT



Total Ongoing Costs: Quantity Total Ongoing Cost: Amount Annualized FOF Funding

1 Sr. Natural Resources Tech (19) 002497 at 10 months $72,000) $59,800) $72,000) $72,000)

2 Natural Resource Tech (16) 10 Months (Part Time Conversion) $58,000) $96,300) $116,000) $116,000)

4160 Seasonal Employees (hours) at 10 months $18.30) $63,200) $76,130) $76,130)

1 Materials & Supplies $30,000) $30,000) $30,000) $30,000)

2 Fleet Fuel $6,000) $12,000) $12,000) $12,000)

2 Fleet Maintenance (Fleet Pays) $5,000) $10,000) $0) $0)

(2) Part Time Employee Reallocation of funds $0.00) ($46,000) ($46,000) ($46,000)

Total Ongoing Cost: $225,300) $260,130) $260,130)

Relation to Mayor's Plan Our Community: Inclusive, Equitable Opportunities, Safe and Affordable Neighborhoods

       Our Growth:  Our trails will serve as an economic catalyst—opening up opportunities for outdoor tourism and small business development.  They'll also provide critical “social infrastructure”—public spaces where people can meet, interact and build relationships. 

Our Environment: Weed removal, Native Plantings

Outcomes Ø  Greater equity in service throughout the city

Ø  Improve neighborhood appearance 

Ø  Reduce the spread of weeds to private property

Reimagine Nature Master Plan 
Approaches for Action (Closest you 

can find to support the initiative)
Connect: Action 1.1B, Action 1.2 D, Action 2.3 B - Protect Action 1.1E, 

DRAFT



FY 2023 - 24 Budget Insight

Name of Insight Parks Events / Afterhours Crew 

Background

General Park operations, mowing, irrigation repairs, trash removal and restroom cleaning 
happen between 6:00 am and 3:00 pm when the park is not active, and these activities do 
not disrupt visitor use.  However, because visitor use happens primarily between 2:00 pm 
and 8:00 pm,and on weekends a second crew to manage visitor use such as garbage removal 
and restroom cleaning could result in a cleaner, safer park and deter criminal activity. 

Details
• (1) Lead Parks Maintenance Technician (formerly Groundskeeper) Grade 21
• (5) Parks Maintenanc Technician II (Formerly Sr. Parks Groundskeeper) Grade 19

Brief Summary 
We propose adding 6 FTEs to operate an Events Crew to focus on cleaning, events and minor 
landscaping during the active times of Liberty Park and other major parks in the City.

Impact to Budget Total Department Request (GF) includes Equipment $658,800)

Total Non-Departmental Budget Impacts (Fleet & IMS) $224,500)

One-Time Cost: Quantity Total One-Time Cost: Amount
3 ¾ Ton Crew Cab trucks $65,000) $195,000)

1 IMS Computers $2,500) $2,500) surface for lead only
Total One-Time Cost: $197,500)

Total Ongoing Costs: Quantity Total Ongoing Cost: Amount Annualized

1 Lead Parks Groundskeeper (grade 20) $91,000) $75,500) $91,000)

5 Park Maintenance Tech (grade 19) $85,000) $352,800) $425,000)

6 Associated materials & supplies $1,000) $6,000) $6,000)  

3 Fleet Fuel $4,000) $12,000) $12,000)

3 Fleet Maintenance (Fleet Pays) $5,000) $15,000) $0)

DRAFT



Total Ongoing Cost: $461,300) $534,000)

Relation to Mayor's Plan Our Community: Inclusive, Equitable Opportunities, Safe and Affordable Neighborhoods

Outcomes Ø  Greater equity in service throughout the city

Ø  Reduction of vandalism by having presence through the weekend 

 

Reimagine Nature Master Plan 
Approaches for Action (Closest you 

can find to support the initiative)

Protect: Action 2.1 A  Provide additional maintenance, activation and improvement 
resources to west-side parks in order to promote a similar degree of attractiveness and 
usability compared to east-side parks (equity, not equality). Secure park maintenance funding 
for the Jordan River Parkway equivalent to those resources allocated to Liberty Park and 
other regionally-significant assets, on a per-acre basis.

DRAFT



FY 2023 - 24 Budget Insight

Name of Insight Public Lands Tree Maintenance

Background

Over the last 5 years the City's urban forest has benefited from increased focus and funding 
to plant more new trees and better preserve and maintain older trees.  However, high service 
request demand and substantial backlogs for tree removal and pruning work have 
necessitated the vast majority of the Urban Foresty Division's tree maintenance resources to 
be directed toward servicing of neighborhood street trees.  As a result, capacity for 
maintenance pruning of park, golf course, and other public lands property trees is lacking. 

5,000 - 6,000 of farway trees. 10,000 if ytou consider trees in the canyon.

Details
(2) FTE Arborists(1 Grade 19 and 1 Grade 21), constituting one tree pruning crew
(1) 92' Spiderlift and transport truck                                                                                                                             
(1) 18" Wood Chipper

Brief Summary 

Impact to Budget Total Department Request (GF) includes Equipment $639,200)

Total Non-Departmental Budget Impacts (Fleet & IMS) $479,500)

One-Time Cost: Quantity Total One-Time Cost: Amount
1 92' Spider Lift w/ Transport Truck $230,000) $230,000)

1 F-600 Chasis Truck $100,000) $100,000)

1 18" Wood Chipper $125,000) $125,000)

1 IMS Computers $2,500) $2,500)

Total One-Time Cost: $457,500)

Total Ongoing Costs: Quantity Total Ongoing Cost: Amount Annualized

1 Arborist Crew Forman  FTE (grade 21) at 10 months $95,800) $79,500) $95,800)

1 Arborist II FTE (grade 19) at 10 months $87,000) $72,200) $87,000)

2 Associated materials & supplies $4,000) $8,000) $8,000)

2 Fleet Fuel $6,000) $12,000) $12,000)

2 Fleet Maintenance (Fleet Pays) $5,000) $10,000) $0)

Total Ongoing Cost: $181,700) $202,800)

Relation to Mayor's Plan Our Growth:

Our Environment:

Outcomes Ø  Safer, healthier, trees in our Parks, Golf Courses, and other public lands

Ø  Increased acessability and reach capabilities for UF operations

Ø  Greater storm/emergency response capacity for UF operations

Reimagine Nature Master Plan 
Approaches for Action (Closest you 

can find to support the initiative)

DRAFT



FY 2023 - 24 Budget Insight

Name of Insight Public Way Beautification (formerly Weed Abatement)

Background

In 2012 Salt Lake City Public Lands was assigned the weed abatement program, transferred to 
PL from Sanitation. The program provided weed removal, mowing and spraying of herbicides 
in right of ways, alleys, medians and undeveloped City properties. There are no weed 
abatement funds in the PL budget for this program.  Since 2016 PL has requested funding for 
this program annually. Currently the program operates on a complaint basis using Park’s 
maintenance funds to hire two seasonal staff.  

Details

•(2) FTE Park Maintenance Tech (formerly Sr. Groundskeeper) (Grade 19) dedicated to weed 
abatement throughout the City on scheduled abatement program (District 5).
•(6) seasonal staff at scheduled locations with increased mowing. 
•The weed abatement program will operate year-round 

Brief Summary 

Weed removal, mowing and spraying of herbicides in right of ways, alleys, and undeveloped 
City properties. 
The current program operates on a complaint basis using Park’s maintenance funds and 
equipment. 

Impact to Budget Total Department Request (GF) includes Equipment $578,400)

Total Non-Departmental Budget Impacts (Fleet & IMS) $312,000)

One-Time Cost: Quantity Total One-Time Cost: Amount
2 ¾ - ton pickup trucks $65,000) $130,000)

1 one-ton dump bed truck $85,000) $85,000)

1 trailer $20,000) $20,000)

DRAFT



1 Kubota Flail Mower $50,000) $50,000)

2 IMS Computers $2,500) $5,000)

Total One-Time Cost: $290,000)

Total Ongoing Costs: Quantity Total Ongoing Cost: Amount Annualized

2 Park Maintenance Tech (grade 19) at 10 months $85,000) $141,100) $170,000)

6240 Seasonal Employees (hours) at 10 months $18.30) $94,800) $114,195)

1 Associated materials & supplies $30,500) $30,500) $30,500)

2 Fleet Fuel $6,000) $12,000) $12,000)

2 Fleet Maintenance (Fleet Pays) $5,000) $10,000) $0)

Total Ongoing Cost: $288,400) $326,695)

Relation to Mayor's Plan Our Community: Inclusive, Equitable Opportunities, Safe and Affordable Neighborhoods

Outcomes Ø  Greater equity in service throughout the city

Ø  Improve neighborhood appearance 

Ø  Reduce the spread of weeds to private property

Reimagine Nature Master Plan 
Approaches for Action (Closest you 

can find to support the initiative)

Welcome: Action 2.2 E  Utliized the Project for Public Spaces model and Crime Prevention 
through Environmental Design (CPTED) standards for thinking about the factors that 
influence active and safe putlic spaces.

DRAFT



FY 2023 - 24 Budget Insight

Name of Insight Park Maintenance Staff Seasonal to Fulltime Conversion

Background

Working conditions in our parks have changed dramatically with warmer temperatures and less 
snowfall in the winters.  Parks staff work throughout the year, as visitors continue using parks in 
the winter months.  When the snow does fall, full time staff are busy clearing snow from sidewalks 
and trails and removing fallen tree branches when heavy wet snows come in the spring. Full-time 
staff offers a reliable and consistent workforce where orientation training is only required once.  
This is the first of a three year phased approach to convert some seasonal hours to increase full-
time park maintenance staff. 

Details
(7) FTE Park Maintenance Technicians (formerly Sr. Park Groundskeepers) (Grade 19) - These 
positions will be dispersed to all Parks Districts dedicated to park maintenance throughout the 
entire year.

Brief Summary 
We propose to invest in full-time employees to have a more consistent and reliable workforce. 
This is the first of a three year phased approach to increase full-time park maintenance staff.

Impact to Budget Total Department Request (GF) includes Equipment $776,689)

Total Non-Departmental Budget Impacts (Fleet & IMS) $407,000)

One-Time Cost: Quantity Total One-Time Cost: Amount
2 ¾ - ton pickup trucks $65,000) $130,000)

1 one-ton dump bed truck $250,000) $250,000)

0 IMS Computers $2,500) $0)

Total One-Time Cost: $380,000)
DRAFT



Total Ongoing Costs: Quantity Total Ongoing Cost: Amount Annualized

7 Park Maintenance Techs (grade 19) at 10 months $85,000) $493,850) $595,000)

(8,635) Seasonal Staff Hours Reduction at 10 months $18.30) ($131,161) ($158,025)

1 Associated materials & supplies $7,000) $7,000) $7,000)

3 Fleet Fuel $4,000) $12,000) $12,000)

3 Fleet Maintenance (Fleet Pays) $5,000) $15,000) $0)

Total Ongoing Cost: $396,689) $455,975)

Relation to Mayor's Plan Our City Family: We will support our employees’ physical, mental, and economic well-being and prioritize our workforce to recruit and retain the best public servants.

Outcomes Ø  Greater equity in service throughout the city

Ø  Improve appearance of City parks

 

Reimagine Nature Master Plan 
Approaches for Action (Closest you 

can find to support the initiative)

Protect: Action 2.1 A  Provide additional maintenance, activation and improvement resources to 
west-side parks in order to promote a similar degree of attractiveness and usability compared to 
east-side parks (equity, not equality). Secure park maintenance funding for the Jordan River 
Parkway equivalent to those resources allocated to Liberty Park and other regionally-significant 
assets, on a per-acre basis.

DRAFT



Funding Our Future (FOF) Funding Explanation

The Funding our Future was a sales tax increase enacted in 2019 to generate additional general fund
revenues. Technically, there are no restrictions for use of these funds, but the goal of the Mayor and the
City Council was to make sure these dollars are directed toward transit, safer neighborhoods, street
infrastructure and affordable housing.  The City ensures money from that sales tax increase is dedicated
to the proposed initiatives.  Most of the funding has been appropriated specifically to cover ongoing
costs associated with maintenance of City assets related to transit, safer neighborhoods, street
infrastructure, and affordable housing.

In 2022, the City Council appropriated $2M in FOF funding to the maintenance of the city’s parks, trails
and open spaces.  In this fiscal year, FY23, the Department has utilized the funding for the maintenance
of trees, park parking lots and many other needed maintenance projects.  In FY24, the Public Lands
Department intends to request $1,382,995 to cover 12.5 full time employee allocations and
maintenance costs related to the below FY24 Budget insights, from the FOF funds.  The remaining
$617,005 FOF funding allocated to Public Lands will be utilized for other maintenance projects needed
throughout the year.

FOF Funding FY24 Budget Insight
$404,300 .01 FY2024 New Property & Amenities Maintenance (2 FTE)
$259,065 .03 FY2024 TNL Maintenance Enhancement (3 FTE)
$459,500 .04 FY2024 Park Growth & Use Impacts (4.5 FTE)
$260,130 .05 FY2024 Soft Surface Recreational Trail Maintenance Program (3 FTE)
$1,382,995 Total FY24 FOF Funding Request

DRAFT


	PNUT Agenda 2.2.23
	PNUT UNAPPROVED MINUTES 1.5.23
	00 FY2024 Inflationary & Contractual Increases Draft.xlsx - Sheet1
	01 FY2024 New Property & Amenities Maintenance Draft.xlsx - Budget Insight
	02 FY2024 Add'l Planning Staff (3 Planners) Draft.xlsx - Sheet1
	03 FY2024 TNL Maintenance Enhancement Draft.xlsx - TNL Maintenance
	04 FY2024 Park Growth & Use Impacts Draft.xlsx - Sheet1
	05 FY2024 Soft Surface Recreational Trail Maintenance Program Draft.xlsx - Foothills Natural Area BI
	06 FY2024 Park Events After hours Crew Draft.xlsx - Sheet1
	07 FY2024 Public Lands Tree Maintenance UF Draft.xlsx - Sheet1
	08 FY2024 Public Way Beautification Draft.xlsx - Sheet1
	09 FY2024 Park Maintenance Staff Seasonal to Fulltime Conversion Draft.xlsx - Initiative #
	Funding Our Future Explanation 12.20.2022 Draft.docx



